

PHILIP D. MURPHY Governor

SHEILA Y. OLIVER Lieutenant Governor

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
P.O. Box 110

Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0110

**BOARD OF REVIEW** 

Robert Asaro-Angelo Commissioner

# MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF REVIEW MARCH 8, 2023

NANCY HUNT, CHAIRPERSON

WILLIAM SCAGLIONE, VICE-CHAIR

LISA HART, MEMBER

MARIA ZOLA, ACTING EXECUTIVE SECRETARY



## **BOARD OF REVIEW MEETING March 8, 2023**

## March 8, 2023

A regular meeting of the Board of Review was held on Wednesday, March 8, 2023, at 10:00 a.m., via conference call, in Trenton, New Jersey

PRESENT: Nancy Hunt, Chairperson, William Scaglione, Vice-Chairperson, Lisa Hart, Member, MARIA ZOLA, Acting Executive Secretary,

In accordance with L1975, c.231, the Chairperson to the Board of Review opened the meeting with the following statement:

Notice of this meeting was filed with the Secretary of State and sent to the Trenton Times, Newark Star Ledger and Courier Post and posted in the Lobby of the Department of Labor, 1 John Fitch Plaza, Trenton, New Jersey.

All actions were by unanimous vote unless otherwise specified.

#### **BOARD MINUTES:**

Submitted for adoption are the minutes of the February 22, 2023, Board meeting.

ACTION: BOARD VOTED TO ADOPT THE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 22, 2023, BOARD MEETING.

## **SECTION A – HEARING MATTERS:**

#### A-1 VACATED APPEALS BY THE BOARD OF REVIEW

#### 1. ADALBERTO GONZALEZ

BOR DKT. 00273386

Claimant sent letter to Board of Review requesting a payment plan for the non-fraud refund liability.

ACTION: BOARD VOTED TO ACCEPT THE ABOVE CASE AS VACATED APPEALS BY THE BOARD OF REVIEW.

# A-2 DISMISSED APPEALS BY THE BOARD OF REVIEW DUE TO UNTIMELY FILING OR FOR NON-JUSTICIABLE APPEAL ISSUE

# 1. MICHELLE MARZARELLA

BOR DKT. 00268587

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal withdrawing the claimant's appeal of the Director and Deputy's determinations.

### 2. CONOR MITNIK

BOR DKT. 0031286

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily and a liability to a non-fraud refund.

#### KAREENA ROSARIO

BOR DKT. 00261920

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of regular benefits for leaving work voluntarily, and a liability for a non-fraud refund.

### 4. KODY LUDWIG

BOR DKT. 00287880

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily without good cause attributable to the work,

an ineligibility of Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits and a liability to a refund.

#### 5. CARMINE RUSSO

BOR DKT. 00275826

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily without good cause attributable to the work, an ineligibility of Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits and a liability to a refund.

#### 6. LUCILLE CAMPBELL STEWART

BOR DKT. 00272737

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily without good cause attributable to the work and a liability to a refund.

#### 7. EARLE DUNBAR

BOR DKT. 00257647

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claimant not unemployed and liable for a refund.

#### 8. MATTHEW BEGOVICH IV

BOR DKT. 00259700

Employer appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding claimant was not disqualified for benefits for voluntarily leaving work without good cause and not liable for a refund.

#### 9. SUSAN WALKER

BOR DKT. 00265621

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for voluntarily leaving work without good cause and liability for a non-fraud refund.

### 10. EMILY SOCHA

BOR DKT. 00258508

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for voluntarily leaving work without good cause, ineligible for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) as the claimant's unemployment was not due to one of the COVID-19 related reasons identified under the CARES Act, and liability for a non-fraud refund.

#### 11. AURELIA BARNES

BOR DKT. 00269972

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for misconduct connected with the work.

#### 12. IMANI GLOVER

BOR DKT. 00276720

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding an ineligibility for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits and a liability to a refund.

## 13. ALBERT JIMENEZ

BOR DKT. 00290706

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a refund liability due to the receipt of Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits subsequent to the end of the program.

14. HEE PARK

BOR DKT. 00290639

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding an ineligibility for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits and a liability to a refund.

#### 15. KEITH MARGERUM

BOR DKT. 00256813

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the Tribunal had no jurisdiction to rule on the claimant's eligibility for benefits and liability for a refund.

### 16. LINDA ENRIGHT

BOR DKT. 00260185

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claim valid, directing the Division to issue any resulting underpayment to the claimant, and to consider the claimant's pending application for dependency benefits.

#### 17. TYSON CUMMINGS

BOR DKT. 00233838

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for voluntarily leaving work without good cause, and ineligible for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) as the claimant's unemployment was not due to one of the COVID-19 related reasons identified under the CARES Act.

#### 18. CHRISTINE MIGLIORINO

BOR DKT. 00274795

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal denying the request to reopen the appeal.

# 19. SAMANTHA LU

BOR DKT. 00309564

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for voluntarily leaving work without good cause attributable to the work.

#### 20. CHRISTINE FIGUEROA

BOR DKT. 00260588

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for voluntarily leaving work without good cause, ineligible for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) as the claimant's unemployment was not due to one of the COVID-19 related reasons identified under the CARES Act, and liability for a non-fraud refund.

#### 21. CHRISTINE MCDONALD

BOR DKT. 00280846

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding an ineligibility for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits and a liability to a refund.

## 22. JOHN KALIN JR.

BOR DKT. 00262365

Employer appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding no disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily.

ACTION: BOARD VOTED TO ACCEPT THE ABOVE CASES AS DISMISSED APPEALS BY THE BOARD OF REVIEW DUE TO UNTIMELY FILING OR FOR NON-JUSTICIABLE APPEAL ISSUE.

# A-3 DENIAL OF REOPENING REQUESTS TO THE BOARD OF REVIEW

#### 1. RICHARD MENDEZ

BOR DKT. 297547

The claimant is requesting reconsideration of the Board of Review decision affirming the Appeal Tribunal decision holding the claimant disqualified for benefits as the claimant left work voluntarily without good cause attributable to such work.

#### 2. CAROLINA MORA

BOR DKT. 00250106

The claimant is requesting reconsideration of the Board of Review decision affirming the Appeal tribunal decision holding the claimant disqualified for benefits under N.J.S.A. 43:21-5(a) and is ineligible for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA).

## 3. BARBARA MANDEVILLE

The claimant is requesting reconsideration of the Board of Review decision affirming the Appeal Tribunal decision. The Board of Review reviewed the matter and affirmed the Appeal Tribunal decision.

#### 4. YOHERLIN DE LA CRUZ MONERO

BOR DKT. 00235641

The claimant is requesting reconsideration of the Board of Review decision. The claimant appealed late without good cause to the Appeal Tribunal which dismissed the appeal as late through 1/31/21. The Board of Review affirmed.

#### 5. ALBERT KOLLER

BOR DKT. 00254817

The claimant is requesting reconsideration of the Board of Review decision affirming the Appeal Tribunal decision as the claimant voluntarily left work without good cause and is liable for refund.

## 6. DINA PAGANO

BOR DKT. 00285051

The claimant is requesting reconsideration of the Board of Review decision affirming the Appeal Tribunal decision which dismissed the appeal as being late.

## 7. RALPH CLAVELL

BOR DKT. 00266627

The claimant is requesting reconsideration of the Board of Review decision affirming the Appeal Tribunal decision holding the claimant disqualified for benefits and liable for a non-fraud refund.

ACTION: BOARD VOTED TO ACCEPT THE ABOVE CASES AS DENIAL OF REOPENING REQUESTS TO THE BOARD OF REVIEW.

#### A-4 AFFIRMATIONS OF APPEAL TRIBUNAL DECISIONS BY THE BOARD OF REVIEW

#### 1. AMBER MACLEOD

BOR DKT. 00268139

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily, and a liability for a non-fraud refund.

#### 2. ROBERT RAFF

BOR DKT. 00257299

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the unemployment claim invalid.

#### 3. LISA WEINMAN

BOR DKT. 00271845

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) claim valid with a weekly benefit rate of \$231 and maximum benefit amount of \$9,009.

#### 4. LISA WEINMAN

BOR DKT. 00271850

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claimant liable for a non-fraud refund.

## 5. MARIAN VULPE

BOR DKT. 00267784

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily and a liability to a non-fraud refund.

## 6. JACQUELINE ROSEN

BOR DKT. 00274385

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claimant ineligible for benefits under availability for work.

## 7. CHELSEA JONES

BOR DKT. 00275150

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding an ineligibility for Extended Benefits as the claimant was disqualified for benefits and has not earned four times the weekly benefit rate in subsequent employment.

#### 8. OLIVIA LEE

BOR DKT. 00267252

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily.

#### 9. THERESA GORMLEY

BOR DKT. 00274415

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal dismissing the appeal as late without good cause.

# 10. ALICE CLEMENTE

BOR DKT. 00271117

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily and a liability to a non-fraud refund.

# 11. MICHAEL BORENSTEIN

BOR DKT. 00267203

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding an ineligibility of benefits under availability for work, an ineligibility of Pandemic Unemployment

Assistance (PUA) as the claimant's unemployment was not due to one of the COVID-19 related reasons identified under the CARES Act, and a liability for a non-fraud refund.

#### 12. KAYLEIGH KELLY

BOR DKT. 00258331

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the unemployment claim invalid, an ineligibility for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits and a liability to a refund.

#### 13. SUSAN EZON

BOR DKT. 00258241

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding an ineligibility for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits and a liability to a refund.

#### 14. ANNMARIE DALEY

BOR DKT. 0030740

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding an ineligibility for benefits under actively seeking work and a liability to a refund.

#### 15. ANTAR SIMMONS

BOR DKT. 00270080

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claimant not unemployed, and liable for a non-fraud refund.

#### 16. ANTAR SIMMONS

BOR DKT. 00270078

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claimant not unemployed.

# 17. CHRIS PATTWELL

BOR DKT. 00273870

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal dismissing the appeal as late without good cause.

#### 18. BYRON INGGS

BOR DKT. 00258532

The claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of regular unemployment benefits for leaving work voluntarily, an ineligibility of Pandemic Unemployment Assistance benefits as the claimant was self-employed in another state at the time of becoming unemployed, and a liability for a non-fraud refund.

#### 19. RENEN YASSA

BOR DKT. 00273749

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claimant ineligible for benefits as the claimant had reasonable assurance of reemployment between terms, and liable for a non-fraud refund.

#### 20. KEITH CUNNIFFE

BOR DKT. 0027393

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal dismissing the appeal as late without good cause.

#### 21. JOSEPH FILIPAK

BOR DKT. 00258253

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily, and a liability for a non-fraud refund.

## 22. KEISHA FIRMAN

BOR DKT. 00252458

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal dismissing the appeal as late without good cause.

# 23. SHARITA DAWSON 00271243

BOR DKT.

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal dismissing the appeal as late without good cause.

#### 24. EDWARD VINCENT

BOR DKT. 00274836

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claimant employed full-time and liability for non-fraud refund.

# 25. DOLORES RIZZUTO

BOR DKT. 00271131

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily.

#### 26. MORRIS HORTON

BOR DKT. 00273373

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) claim valid with a weekly benefit rate of \$231 and a maximum benefit amount of \$17,325.

## 27. THOMAS GOUVEIA

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily, an ineligibility of Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits as the claimant's unemployment was not due to one of the COVID-19 related reasons identified under the CARES Act, and a liability for a non-fraud refund.

#### 28. KEVIN LOVE

BOR DKT. 00259118

Employer appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding no disqualification of benefits for misconduct connected with the work, and no liability for a non-fraud refund.

## 29. DOMENICA SANDERS

BOR DKT. 00270820

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the unemployment claim invalid.

#### 30. LORA GABURO-ASHMAN

BOR DKT. 00295593

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal which denied the claimant's request for a pre-date of an unemployment claim.

#### 31. KAITLYN COSTANZA

BOR DKT. 00270946

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily, and a liability for a non-fraud refund.

#### 32. JOSEPH SIBERRY

BOR DKT. 00272010

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily and a liability to a non-fraud refund.

#### 33. ALFREDO ANDRE

BOR DKT. 00264669

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily without good attributable to the work, an ineligibility for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits and a liability to a refund.

#### 34. ALEXIS BERRY-GOMEZ

BOR DKT. 00274302

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claimant ineligible for benefits under availability for work and ability to work and liability for non-fraud refund.

#### 35. THERESA SPERBER

BOR DKT. 00272679

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily, ineligible for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits as the claimant's unemployment was not due to one of the COVID-19 related reasons identified in the CARES Act and a liability to a non-fraud refund.

### 36. NATHAN YUNKER

BOR DKT. 00266675

Employer appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding no disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily.

#### 37. DANIEL CASELLA

BOR DKT. 00274792

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily, ineligible for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits as the claimant's unemployment was not due to one of the COVID-19 related reasons identified in the CARES Act and a liability to a non-fraud refund.

#### 38. MOHAMAD ELSANKARI

BOR DKT. 00268576

The claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding an ineligible for benefits as the claimant had reasonable assurance of reemployment between terms.

# 39. MOHAMAD ELSANKARI

BOR DKT. 00268578

The claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding an ineligible for benefits as the claimant had reasonable assurance of reemployment between terms.

#### 40. MOHAMAD ELSANKARI

BOR DKT. 00273054

The claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding an ineligible for benefits as the claimant had reasonable assurance of reemployment between terms.

#### 41. MOHAMAD ELSANKARI

BOR DKT, 00273055

The claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding an ineligible for benefits as the claimant had reasonable assurance of reemployment between terms.

#### 42. MOHAMAD ELSANKARI

BOR DKT. 00273056

The claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding an ineligible for benefits as the claimant had reasonable assurance of reemployment between terms.

#### 43. STEPHEN SMITH

BOR DKT. 00275924

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily.

#### 44. MATTEO SALESI

BOR DKT. 00275942

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claimant ineligible for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits as the claimant's unemployment was not due to one of the COVID-19 related reasons identified under the CARES Act, and liable for a non-fraud refund.

### 45. LISA ALDEN

BOR DKT. 00272086

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claimant ineligible for benefits under availability for work and liability for a non-fraud refund.

ACTION: BOARD VOTED TO ACCEPT THE ABOVE CASES AS AFFIRMATIONS OF APPEAL TRIBUNAL DECISIONS BY THE BOARD OF REVIEW.

# A-5 MODIFIED AND REMANDED DECISIONS TO THE APPEAL TRIBUNAL OR DEPUTY BY THE BOARD OF REVIEW

#### KRISTHIE BASTIDAS

BOR DKT. 00274837

Claimant appealed the Appeal Tribunal decision holding the unemployment claim invalid as there were no requalifying wages.

ACTION: BOARD VOTED TO ACCEPT THE ABOVE CASE AS MODIFIED AND REMANDED DECISIONS TO THE APPEAL TRIBUNAL OR DEPUTY BY THE BOARD OF REVIEW.

#### A-6 MODIFICATIONS OF APPEAL TRIBUNAL DECISIONS BY THE BOARD OF REVIEW

#### 1. JOSEPH DEAN

BOR DKT. 00268041

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily, ineligible for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits as the claimant's unemployment was not due to one of the COVID-19 related reasons identified in the CARES Act and a liability to a non-fraud refund.

#### 2. ADRIANA NATALE

BOR DKT. 00272033

Claimant appealed the determination of the Deputy holding the claimant ineligible for benefits for failure to meet reporting requirements in accordance with Division regulations.

## 3. CIERA LINDSEY

BOR DKT. 00263393

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claimant ineligible for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits as the claimant's unemployment was not due to one of the COVID-19 related reasons identified in the CARES Act and liability for non-fraud refund.

### 4. TREVOR STANTON

BOR DKT. 00268063

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily, ineligible for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits as the claimant's unemployment was not due to one of the COVID-19 related reasons identified in the CARES Act and a liability to a non-fraud refund.

#### ROBERT JENNY

BOR DKT. 00273950

Claimant appealed the Appeal Tribunal decision holding the unemployment claim invalid.

#### 6. TUWANA DUNKLEY

BOR DKT, 00271559

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claimant ineligible for Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits as the claimant's unemployment was not due to one of the COVID-19 related reasons identified in the CARES Act and liability for a non-fraud refund.

## 7. ROBERT OLIVIA

BOR DKT. 00274838

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claimant ineligible for benefits under availability for work and liability for non-fraud refund.

## 8. ANTHONY RONDAN

BOR DKT, 00269142

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding an ineligibility of Pandemic Unemployment Assistance (PUA) benefits as the claimant's unemployment was not due to one of the COVID-19 related reasons identified under the CARES Act, and liable for a non-fraud refund.

ACTION: BOARD VOTED TO ACCEPT THE ABOVE CASES AS MODIFICATIONS OF APPEAL TRIBUNAL DECISIONS BY THE BOARD OF REVIEW.

# A-7 REOPENED AND REVERSED DECISIONS OF THE APPEAL TRIBUNAL BY THE BOARD OF REVIEW

#### 1. KATRINA MARIANO

BOR DKT. 00313797

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal dismissing the appeal as late without good cause.

ACTION: BOARD VOTED TO ACCEPT THE ABOVE CASE AS REOPENED AND REVERSED DECISIONS TO THE APPEAL TRIBUNAL.

## A-8 REMANDS TO THE APPEAL TRIBUNAL OR DEPUTY BY THE BOARD OF REVIEW

1. KIANNA ROBINSON

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily.

#### 2. EMILY SZERENSITS

BOR DKT. 00270629

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claimant liable for a non-fraud refund.

## 3. MAXIMINA QUINTANILLA ANYOSA

BOR DKT. 00265255

The claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal dismissing appeal as late without good cause.

#### 4. JOHN KALIN JR.

BOR DKT. 00262365

Employer appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding no disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily.

#### 5. PATRICIA MALTESE

BOR DKT. 00271171

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the unemployment claim invalid.

#### 6. DOUGLAS PELLECCHIA

BOR DKT. 00257773

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily without good cause attributable to the work and a liability to a refund.

#### 7. CATHERINE MAGUIRE

BOR DKT. 00268846

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal dismissing the appeal as late without good cause.

#### 8. JUSTINIANO OBANDO

BOR DKT. 00273589

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal dismissing the appeal as late without good cause.

#### 9. MICHELE LEONE

BOR DKT. 00274791

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding the claimant employed full-time and liable for a non-fraud refund.

## 10. ELIZABETH PYE-GERSTEIN

Employer appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding no disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily.

ACTION: BOARD VOTED TO ACCEPT THE ABOVE CASES AS REMANDS TO THE APPEAL TRIBUNAL OR DEPUTY BY THE BOARD OF REVIEW.

# A-9 REVERSED AND MODIFIED DECISIONS TO THE APPEAL TRIBUNAL

#### 1. LINDSEY BOGDOL

BOR DKT. 00257060

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal dismissing the appeal as late without good cause.

ACTION: BOARD VOTED TO ACCEPT THE ABOVE CASE AS REVERSED AND MODIFIED DECISIONS TO THE APPEAL TRIBUNAL.

#### A-10 REVERSED DECISIONS OF THE APPEAL TRIBUNAL

### 1. FARRAH MALIACSKY

BOR DKT. 00262381

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal dismissing the appeal as late without good cause.

#### 2. OLGA VELEZ

BOR DKT. 00272904

Claimant appealed a decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding an ineligibility of benefits under ability to work, and a liability for a non-fraud refund.

#### 3. LANCE VILLA

BOR DKT. 00272246

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily.

#### 4. LINDA LASTELLA

BOR DKT. 00270706

Claimant appealed the decision of the Appeal Tribunal holding a disqualification of benefits for leaving work voluntarily and a liability to a non-fraud refund.

# ACTION: BOARD VOTED TO ACCEPT THE ABOVE CASES AS REVERSED DECISIONS OF THE APPEAL TRIBUNAL.